Public Document Pack

Scrutiny Panel -
Environment & Quality of i
| ife

N

Please contact: Matt Stembrowicz
Please email: matthew.stembrowicz@north-norfolk.gov.uk
Please Direct Dial on: 01263 516047

16" March 2022
A meeting of The Scrutiny Panel - Environment & Quality of Life will be held in remotely via Zoom

on Thursday, 24 March 2022 at 2.30 pm.

Emma Denny
Democratic Services Manager

To Councillors: Mr H Blathwayt, Dr V Holliday, Mr J Rest, Mr A Varley and Ms L Withington
Officers: Maxine Collis and Matthew Stembrowicz

For information to: all other Members

IN 4\
W TRAN

communication for all

If you have any special requirements in order
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance
If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in
a different language please contact us

Corporate Directors: Nick Baker and Steve Blatch
Tel 01263 513811 Fax 01263 515042 Minicom 01263 516005
Email districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk Web site www.north-norfolk.gov.uk



mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk

AGENDA
APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.
MINUTES
To approve minutes of the meeting held on 24" February 2022.
ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

To consider any actions arising from the minutes of the previous
meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may
have in any of the following items on the agenda. The Code of Conduct
for Members requires that declarations include the nature of the interest
and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest (see attached
guidance and flowchart).

ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To determine any other items of business which the Chairman decides
should be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

PUBLIC CONVENIENCE STANDARDS

To discuss and agree a proposed set of standards for the Council’s
public conveniences and consider any potential improvement/survey
options available to the Council.

PUBLIC CONVENIENCE LOCATIONS AND ASSET REGISTER

To review the Council’s public convenience locations and the associated
asset register.

TO AGREE ITEMS OF BUSINESS FOR THE NEXT MEETING
To agree topics for discussion at the next meeting.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

To pass the following resolution, if necessary:

“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraphs _ of Part | of Schedule 12A (as
amended) to the Act.”



Agenda Item 2

SCRUTINY PANEL - ENVIRONMENT & QUALITY OF LIFE

Minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Panel - Environment & Quality of Life held on
Thursday, 24 February 2022 in the remotely via Zoom at 10.00 am

Committee Mr H Blathwayt Dr V Holliday
Members Present:
Mr J Rest
Officers in Property, Project & Programme Manager (PPPM), Environmental
Attendance: Services Manager (ESM) and Democratic Services and Governance

Officer - Scrutiny (DSGOS)
10 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Clir L Withington and Clir A Varley, with Clir V Holliday
joining the meeting from 11.00am.

11 MINUTES

Minutes of the meeting held on 27" January 2022 were approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.

12 ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

i.  Clir H Blathwayt stated that the toilets in his Ward were subject to seasonal
usage, and he had asked Parish Councils whether they were able to monitor
usage. He added that he had discussed toilet cost sharing arrangements with
a neighbouring authority, and it was suggested that ongoing discussions
could be expected to take place.

i. Clr J Rest stated that Fakenham had a generous supply of public
conveniences, and noted that the Bridge Street Car Park facility covered a
wide area and was busy as expected. He added that the Queens Road Car
Park facilities also covered a wide area, with further toilets available for
public use in shopping centres and the Library. It was noted that the Highfield
Road facility saw very little use and consideration of closure may be justified
by potential savings. The PPM noted that the Highfield Road Car Park was
mainly used on market days, though even this was limited, with several other
public convenience options available in the area. Clir H Blathwayt noted that
in addition to be an underused facility, its location on a car park meant that
the Highfield Road facility would not be eligible for business rates relief,
which added further to its running costs. Clir J Rest suggested that he did not
expect much cleaning of the facility to be required, given its limited use.

iii. The PPM noted that Clir V holliday had submitted comments via email
regarding public conveniences in Walsingham, which she considered a high-
tourism area that should be graded accordingly on the scoring matrix. It was
noted that any changes to the facility would be difficult, given its listed status.
Clir H Blathwayt suggested that there were a number of other publicly
available toilets in the area at the Anglican and Roman Catholic Shrines, as
well as at various pubs.

iv.  The PPM noted that ClIr V Holliday had also reviewed public conveniences in

Page 1



13

14

15

Blakeney, which she had found to be adequate, and Holt. It was noted that at
the February Council meeting, the local Member for Holt had raised concerns
regarding the Albert Street public conveniences. Cllir V Holliday had also
raised concerns that there were issues with the provision across the town,
with limited disabled access, and the Town Council’s facilities currently
closed for refurbishment. It was noted that there were a number of facilities
across Holt, though it was accepted that the condition of some may be below
public expectations. It was noted that improving existing provision was
preferable, as focus remained on quality over quantity.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None declared.

ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None.

QUALITY OF PROVISION

Clir H Blathwayt introduced the item and noted that whilst reviewing public
convenience requirements, the clear priorities that emerged were cleanliness
and safety, which suggested that layout and lighting were also important. The
PPM replied that it would be helpful to survey each block from a user’s
perspective, rather than focusing on physical condition. She added that
expectations were also changing, with sustainability and gender neutral
toilets becoming increasingly important.

The ESM informed Members that public convenience cleansing formed part
of the wider Serco waste contract. He added that it was a common
misconception that the contract required each facility to be cleaned a certain
number of times per day, which was determined by an output specification
requiring each facility to be kept to an acceptable level of cleanliness. It was
noted that during busy periods, this could three to four times per day with
additional staff available to meet seasonal demand.

The ESM reported that in the last calendar year 32 worksheets had been
raised for complaints, equating to two to three complaints per month, though
some were considered unjustified as cleansing standards were often
subjective. He added that in some cases older facilities were difficult to keep
clean, which was a further challenge for public perception. It was suggested
that updating older facilities would likely lead to improved public perception
and potentially lower costs.

Cllr J Rest referred to complaints received and asked whether there were
any recurring themes. The ESM replied that complaints were often unspecific
and quoted issues such as being unclean or having excess water throughout
the facility. It was noted that some locations had design or other flaws that
made them very difficult to keep to a high standard.

The PPM referred to the level of cleansing and asked if there was a specific
standard required. The ESM replied that the contract did have specified
outputs which generally resulted in a satisfactory level of cleanliness. Clir H
Blathwayt asked whether it would be worthwhile using a cleansing checklist,
to which the ESM replied that this had been used previously. The ESM

Page 2



Vi.

Vii.

viii.

stated that electronic monitoring systems were available to ensure that
contractual cleansing requirements were being met, and companies offering
this service were also able to provide payment systems, or monitor usage. It
was reported that automatic locking arrangements had also been
investigated by previous waste contractor, as it cost £54k per annum just to
lock the facilities at night. The ESM stated that the previous quote for
automatic opening and closing systems across the maijority of the Council’s
public conveniences was approximately £120k, which would be paid back in
just over two years. He added that the current waste contractor had also
considered this option, and noted that a greater saving could be achieved if
the Council implemented the technology itself.

Clir H Blathwayt asked whether automatic closure would present any risk of
locking customers inside, to which the ESM replied that this did happen on
occasion even without the system, and an exit button would likely be
provided. The ESM added that one issue could be an increased risk of anti-
social behaviour, and whilst individual toilets may be easier to lock, this could
be more expensive if locking systems were charged per door.

Clir J Rest referred to toilet cubicles, and asked whether there was a
standard size that had to be adhered to. The PPM replied that this
information was available from the ‘Loo of the Year Awards’ website, though
it was expected any sizing guidance would be best practice only. Cllr J Rest
suggested that in order to make the most of available space and increase
cubicle numbers, it could be worth considering toilets with combined basins
that recycled grey water. Clir H Blathwayt noted that other grey water
recycling systems were available, and these should be investigated for any
new projects, subject to costs. The ESM noted potential concerns that these
systems could lead to excess water spillage, but accepted that recycling of
grey water or harvesting rainwater could provide environmental benefits. The
PPM noted that at present, there was no requirement for sustainability to be
considered during development of new facilities, and whilst any requirements
could raise costs it was possible this could save money in the long-term.

Clir H Blathwayt suggested that there was a balance to be struck with making
toilets presentable, but also utilitarian enough to stand up to heavy usage. It
was noted that some of the Council’s older facilities still had stainless steel
fittings that were unappealing to users. The PPM suggested that it was
possible for some locations to be more utilitarian than others, in areas where
they may be more susceptible to damage.

Clir H Blathwayt summarised potential standards that included cleanliness,
fixtures and fittings, clear signage, disabled accessibility, appropriate location
and lighting. The PPM noted that opening times were also important, and
new facilities had already been agreed for North Walsham and Sheringham
with no specific set standards. Cllr H Blathwayt stated it was there important
to agree standards as soon as possible. The PPM noted that external lighting
and signposting were also important to ensure that facilities were safe and
easy to find. She added that LED lighting had become mainstream, and
could be expected as standard for any new facilities.

The ESM suggested that it could be useful to gather external opinions of the
Council’s facilities, and suggest that representatives of Healthmatic could be
invited to attend a future meeting to provide this. The PPM stated that
funding had been allocated for any survey work required, as the Council did

Page 3



16

not hold data on how its public conveniences were perceived across the

District.

xi.  In response to a question from Clir J Rest, Members were informed that a
map of the Council’'s public conveniences was available on the NNDC
Website.

xii.  Clir H Blathwayt stated that he supported inviting a representative from

Healthmatic to attend a future meeting to discuss standards.

xiii.  ClIr V Holliday noted that the Cley community public convenience had an
automatic locking system that worked well and had not caused any
problems. Cllr J Rest raised concerns that the potential malfunctions made
the automatic locking systems high risk, and the rurality of the District should
be taken into account when resolving issues. He added that it would be
useful to know how many other Councils used these systems. The ESM
suggested that these issues could be raised with Healthmatic, alongside
other standards enquiries. The PPM noted that any survey work over £10k
would require the procurement process to be followed.

xiv.  The DSGOS noted the comments made about various locations having
different standards, and asked whether the Council’s public conveniences
had been categorised by location, in the same way as the Council’s car
parks. The PPM replied that this was not included in the scoring matrix at
present, but could be added with Members supportive of the proposal.

xv.  CliIr J Rest referred to signage and asked whether NNDC would be able to
undertake this work, or whether it would require approval from NCC. The
PPM replied that any large signage would require NCC approval, though this
had not been a difficult process during the Deep History Coast Project.

xvi.  ClIr V Holliday suggested that it could be useful to ask Parish Councils for
their impressions of the Council’s public conveniences, and note any
concerns raised.

xvii.  Clir H Blathwayt summarised potential standards subject to variation
following consultation with external surveyors, which included cleanliness,
location specific fixtures and fittings, clear signage, disabled access,
appropriate location and internal/external lighting.

ACTIONS

1. PPM to include location categories on scoring Matrix, to help to determine
standards for varying locational requirements.

2. DSGOS to contact Parish Councils on perception of public conveniences.
AGREE ITEMS FOR MARCH AGENDA

The DSGOS suggested that in addition to inviting a Healthmatic representative,
location and asset values were due to be considered at the next meeting. He added
that the asset register had already been prepared at the request of the Governance,
Risk and Audit Committee. The DSGOS asked whether it was possible to quantify
potential savings if any public conveniences were closed, to which the ESM replied
that each facility would have a specific rate as part of the cleansing contract, and he

Page 4



would seek to confirm whether removal of a facility would generate an equivalent
saving. ClIr J Rest requested that costs of cleaning new changing places facilities
also be explored.

ACTIONS

1. ESM to request attendance of Healthmatic representative for March
meeting.

2. ESM to review potential savings for removal of public conveniences from
cleansing contract

3. ESM to determine costs of cleansing new changing places facilities.
17 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

18 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The meeting ended at 11.33 am.

Chairman

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4
| -

Declarations of Interest at Meetings -‘*

NORTH
NORFOLK
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

When declaring an interest at a meeting, Members are asked to indicate whether their interest in the matter is
pecuniary, or if the matter relates to, or affects a pecuniary interest they have, or if it is another type of interest
Members are required to identify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to which it relates. In the case
of other interests, the member may speak and vote. If it is a pecuniary interest, the member must withdraw
from the meeting when it is discussed. If it affects or relates to a pecuniary interest the member has, they have
the right to make representations to the meeting as a member of the public but must then withdraw from the
meeting.

Have you declared the interest in the register of interests as a pecuniary interest? If Yes, you will need to
withdraw from the room when it is discussed.

Does the interest directly:
1. Affect yours, or your spouse / partner’s financial position?
2. Relate to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to you
or your spouse / partner?
3. Relate to a contract you, or your spouse / partner have with the Council
4. Affect land you or your spouse / partner own
5. Affect a company that you or your partner own, or have a shareholdingin

If the answer is “yes” to any of the above, it is likely to be pecuniary.

Please refer to the guidance given on declaring pecuniary interests in the register of interest forms. If you have
a pecuniary interest, you will need to inform the meeting and then withdraw from the room when it is
discussed. If it has not been previously declared, you will also need to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28
days.

Does the interest indirectly affect or relate to any pecuniary interest you have already declared, or an interest
you have identified at 1-5 above?

If yes, you need to inform the meeting. When it is discussed, you will have the right to make representations
to the meeting as a member of the public, but must then withdraw from the meeting.

Is the interest not related to any of the above? If so, it is likely to be another interest. You will need to declare
the interest, but may participate in discussion and voting on the item.

Have you made any statements or undertaken any actions that would indicate that you have a closed mind on
a matter under discussion? If so, you may be predetermined on the issue; you will need to inform the meeting
and when it is discussed, you will have the right to make representations to the meeting as a member of the
public, but must then withdraw from the meeting.

FOR GUIDANCE REFER TO THE FLOWCHART OVERLEAF
PLEASE REFER ANY QUERIES TO THE MONITORING OFFICER IN THE FIRST INSTANCE

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEMBERS SHOULD ALSO REFER TO THE PLANNING PROTOCOL

Page 7



N

Declarations of Interest at Meetings

NORTH
NORFOLK
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed at the meeting?

A 4

Pecuniary Interest

Related Pecuniary

Other Interest

Do any relate to an interest | have?

A Have | declared it as a pecuniary interest?
OR
B Does it directly affect me, my partner or spouse’s financial position, in
particular:
= employment, employers or businesses;
= companies in which they are a director or where they have a shareholding of more than
£25,000 face value or more than 1% of nominal shareholding;
= land or leases they own or hold;
= contracts, licenses, approvals or consents

NO

v VYES

If you have not
already done so,
notify the
Monitoring
Officer to update
your declaration
of interests

The interest is pecuniary —
disclose the interest,
withdraw from the meeting
by leaving the room. Do not
try to improperly influence
the decision

v

The interest is related to a YES Does the matter indirectly affect or relate
p;ﬁcu_n;ary I?tetrtehSt. DIS(;!OSE B to a pecuniary interest | have declared, or
e Interest at the meeting. < a matter noted at B above?
You may makerepresentation
as a member of the public,
but then withdraw from the
room
NO
\ 4
The interest is not pecuniary
inpe?;;f;e(lstiss zI(Z) L;reptﬁceuizltz?ést YES Have | declared the interest as an
at the.meeting You may < ‘other’ interest on my declaration
L - : . of interest form? OR
participate in the meeting and
vote Does it relate to a matter
highlighted at B that impacts upon
my family or a close associate?
OR
You are unlikely to have No Does it affect an organisation | am
an interest. You do not < involved with or a member of? OR
need to do anything
further. Is it a matter | have been, or have
lobbied on?

Page 8



Agenda ltem 7

NNDC WEBSITE - PUBLIC CONVENIENCE LOCATIONS MAP

54,919 views since publication in February 2021

Hevingham

AldD

Upper
Sheringham

Overstrand:*
&4 Mill House Bed
&'Breakfast
U GE ]

Aylmerton

Sidestrand

Northrepps
blands|Farm)| &
Gresham Lower. ® Felbrigg Lodge
Gresham

Page 9



Wells:n

i

Waterden
Sl/GHes

[/
East Barsham
West Barsham| (¢

N

N\

. X
(?rdnn\er \ )
Sculthorpe

4
E E_\
Dunton
Shereford

Fu}%ﬂ*am =

)

Hempton

/

Toftrees ,“
{

/»JSothreuqsl
™~
Thorpe Market |
— = Lower Street
/

/
/ -
Antingham il

] Y
Swafield

Felmingham

Skeyton
Corner.

Westwick

Skeyton
Swanton
Abbott

Badergf\eld

7 Scottow,
__Lamas \

\

\ |
\ ScolRuston, |

he Heath
X

St James

W Coltishall

(¥

Erettenham

Houghton

eL'l*Ee'Sea

Stiffkey’

\

[ ~Warham_ Cockiborpe

>

Salthouse Marshe

F Y

ly 1 Cleyynext 3
{—==the'Sea Salthouse

W #l#

. Newgate
_Weybourne!

Tie
~—

Kellin
.

Langhafn 1

! Bmh{m Priory,
Wighton -
Coby‘s Green

!
Lower Green

/
Hindringham
/

Great Snoring R, \
L \\
Wt rstord wooq @, Thursford
b % /
Little/Snoring’ [
1 7 Barney,
/
/ < ‘
Kettlestone e s /
Fulmodeston

iy

A

Trunch

[ /S Knapton
|

F’;Jélon
| /
| 0Old'Hall Street Bactong'\

‘/l Keswick. ,
Edmglhorper; o

~

Ridlington="""4=

Ridlington
Street

Crostwight

East Ruston Old &
Vicarage Gu‘rlder[\, £ [
— \

et R,
A SN Fast Ruston

Bengate
Lyngate’
\
Wayford Bridge Inn!
Frankfort Smallburgh

Sloley,

< X S
| Pennygate
Beeston St

N\ Lawrence ‘)

N\

/ Wroxham|Barr

e
{
Cangate.

VILDerwood Norfolk

Field'Dalling /

Irstead

Saxlingham \ J / High Kelling

Back To/The Garden &
- Farm Shop, gafe.. y

“little [
I lhornage \_ %Baconsthorpe Castle

/

IntryzRark’$s

‘ B
ol

S > i
Bale Sharrington “Baconsthorpe
/

Brinton /
Hunworth

¥

’B'n'mngham

The Green
Gunthorpe Stedy

Edgefield

Melton
Constable

Barningham/
Briston™_

Ramsgate Green
/ Street

Swanton
Novers

&,
Saxthorpe!
N Corpusty
Thurning

Oulton

AAWood Norton

H\ubplsburgh
‘ Vo Vg
| Cart/GapiBeach,}

)
| P |
i NSy
[ \ Eccles-on-Sea
| S

| \
\ l'essingham
/

Sea F‘»‘\ ing &8

Beachays
#if
e Sea'Ralling
{ WERGE ]
X

\
\

Hickling

/ Horsey,Corner

/, Stubb |
§l

Horséy

i
/

Catfield | Catfield “
[ Common \

\

\
WESE
Somerton—

S
Martham
>

Potter
KHeigham

E l\mck
Reppsiwith
Bastwick

Latham

#iRige

Upper Street™ X




By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Declarations of Interest
	7 Public Convenience Locations and Asset Register
	Public Convenience Asset Register - Exempt


